
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982)

A R Ward
Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee

Eastleigh House, 
Upper Market Street  

Eastleigh, 
Hampshire  SO50 9YN

Telephone: 023 8068 8000
Fax No:  023 8068 8122 

DATE: 4 June 2018

Friday, 8 June 2018
2pm Spitfire Meeting Room, Southampton Airport

AGENDA

Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place.

1. Election of Chair for 2018/19    

2. Election of Vice Chair for 2018/19    

3. Appointment of Honorary Secretary 2018/19    

4. Apologies for absence    

5. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)

6. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 5 - 10)

7. Noise Action Plan    (Pages 11 - 62)

8. Masterplan    

9. Report on Passengers with Restricted Mobility    

10. Feedback from Annual Conference    

11. Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement    

12. Technical Working Group feedback    (Pages 63 - 66)

13. Date and time of next meeting    



This page is intentionally left blank



1

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE

Friday, 9 February 2018  (2:00 pm – 3:50 pm)

Godfrey Olson  (Chairman)
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair)
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary)

Members Present:

Councillor Janice Asman West End Parish Council
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council
Councillor Jan Warwick Winchester City Council
Councillor Spiros Vassiliou Southampton City Council
Councillor Derek Pretty Eastleigh Borough Council
Phil Dominey South Western Trains
Dave Lees Southampton International Airport
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access
Mrs J Smith Bitterne Park Residents' Association

Deputies Present:

Colin Houston National Air Traffic Control
Councillor Michael Hughes Hiltingbury West
Councillor J N S Anderdon Test Valley Borough Council
Mike Smith Townhill Park Residents Association
Danny Maile South Western Trains
Mark Millar Hampshire Chamber of Commerce 

and Industry
Councillor Andy Moore Bishopstoke Parish Council

In Attendance:

Councillor Frank Pearson Winchester City Council

Apologies:

Councillor S Barnes-Andrews Southampton City Council
Councillor Anne Winstanley Eastleigh Borough Council
Councillor Sue Toher Bishopstoke Parish Council
Councillor Rob Humby Hampshire County Council
Councillor Floss Mitchell Hampshire County Council
Stewart Dunn Hampshire Chamber of Commerce
Claire Harrison National Air Traffic Services
Gay Roberts Servisair
Nigel Smith Tourism South East
Cllr Paul Lewzey Southampton City Council
Councillor Steve Sollitt Eastleigh Borough Council
Cllr Bob Painton Southampton City Council
Neil Garwood Southampton International Airport 1

Agenda Item 5



2

Mike Glen Southampton International Airport
Vicky Parkes
Neil Scott Eastleigh Borough Council
Dan Townsend Southampton Airport
Andy Tudor NATS
Rosie Zambra Southampton City Council
Steve Brine MP Winchester Parliamentary 

constituency
Mims Davies MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency
Caroline Nokes MP Romsey and Southampton North 

Parliamentary Constituency
Royston Smith MP Southampton Itchen
Alan Whitehead MP Southampton Test Parliamentary 

Constituency
30. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record.

31. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

David Lees the Manager Director presented his report and highlighted the 
following areas for information:

 The total passenger numbers remained the same as last year for the 
last 4 months of 2017 however the annual figure was 6.1% positive 
versus 2016.

 Total aircraft movements included : 
Passenger and Cargo Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, General 
Aviation, Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights. Between September 
to December 2017 there were 12,346 flights which was a reduction of -
6% compared to the 13,158 flights for the same period in 2016.

 There were two new routes 1) to Skiathos run by FlyLolo and the flights 
would run from 3 July until 2 October 2018. 2) to Menorca run by TUI 
starting in May until September

 Eastern airways would be reintroducing the flights to Rodez in the 
South of France starting in June, including an additional weekly flight.

He finished his report by confirming that he would be leaving the airport to 
start a new role as Chief Operating Officer of Bristol Airport in August 2017.

Members of the Committee congratulated him on his appointment and wished 
him well for the future.

32. PASSENGERS WITH RESTRICTED MOBILITY UPDATE

The Committee received a presentation from Hazel Screech on Passengers 
with Restricted Mobility. She explained that;

 In 2017 there were 0.9% of all passengers who used the airport used 
the services offered.

2



3

 The airport had invested in six ramps - one continental ramp and a 
mobiloader.

 Improved recording & reporting to enable better planning and 
preparedness  - June 2017

 Equality and Disability Awareness Training for all front line teams  - 
April 2017

 Compliance with CAP1411 (providing assistance to people with hidden 
disabilities)

 Improved recording & reporting to enable better planning and 
preparedness  - June 2017

 Equality & Disability Awareness Training for all front line teams  - April 
2017

 Compliance with CAP1411 (providing assistance to people with hidden 
disabilities)

It was noted that the next steps would be:

• Continue with training for frontline teams
– Seek accreditation

• Regular forum with groups and disability organisations
– Review PRM services (assurance & feedback)
– Continuous improvement
– Tender PRM services

33. DEVELOPMENT UPDATE

The Committee was given an update on the current developments and it was 
noted that;

 The Development Master Plan would be going out to public 
Consultation in the next couple of months.

 The central security area had been enhanced with the installation of 
new equipment to improve the efficiency and level of service 

 Navigational aids including a new radar will be upgraded 
 The WH Smith store in the Departure lounge had been extended 

34. NOISE ACTION PLAN

Nichola Shaw the Airside Operations Technical Coordinator went through the 
Noise Action Plan timeline and explained the milestones involved in the plan.  
It was noted that the first draft would be sent to members of the Committee on 
3 April and the deadline for response was the 29 April. 

35. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT

It was noted that there had been no breaches of the flying controls 
agreement.

3



4

36. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK

The Committee received a presentation of Noise Statistics, Lasers and 
Drones from Nichola Shaw the Airside Operations Technical Coordinator who 
reported that;

 There were no noise complaints received during the period of 
September through to December 2017 in comparison to the thirteen 
complaints received the previous year.  

 There were eight noise complaints relating to the southerly runway 
operations

 There were sixteen noise complaints relating to the northerly runway 
operations

 In 2017 there had been nineteen laser strikes which was an increase 
by eight instances in 2016

 A Laser strike and Drone working group had been created and the 
airport is working closely with NATs, Hampshire Constabulary and the 
airlines.

 New NoiseDesk software ad been introduced and it would allow any 
monitoring of NPR deviations, provide comprehensive and detailed 
responses using quantative data and enable the airport to respond 
more efficiently to community enquiries.

Nichola was thanked for the presentation and the Committee agreed that the 
lack of noise complaints received was very good news.

37. CROSSCOUNTRY RAIL UPDATE

The Committee received a presentation from Hayley Bull of CrossCountry 
trains.  She explained that the reason for her giving her presentation was to 
make members aware of what they do and to encourage the Committee to 
give input to the up and coming consultation renewal of the franchise which is 
currently out to tender.  It was noted that CrossCountry Trains service 
eighteen airports and that their services mirror the motorway competition. 

38. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The date of the next meeting was agreed as 8 June 2018.

M6076

4



1 

 

 
 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Managing Director’s Report 
June 2018 

 
1. Total Passenger Numbers – January – March 2018 
 
Between January to March 2018, Southampton Airport welcomed 411,160 passengers which was a 21.35% decrease 
on the 522,824 passengers from the same period in 2017. 
 

 
 

 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Jan 129,423        125,219        108,248        110,405        95,791          88,205          

Feb 134,581        140,170        121,788        128,207        105,805        100,776        

Mar 147,156        157,435        146,494        147,271        129,115        124,489        

Apr 166,129        145,424        146,026        148,172        136,765        

May 176,458        155,874        153,785        166,510        157,691        

Jun 198,455        184,424        167,479        176,392        169,317        

Jul 218,741        206,691        184,334        192,353        188,780        

Aug 224,822        218,793        186,840        200,671        195,225        

Sep 191,866        192,323        165,516        177,067        174,167        

Oct 176,427        174,063        149,352        165,188        145,813        

Nov 145,536        150,582        119,310        140,627        125,950        

Dec 150,819        147,497        118,258        132,566        115,811        

Total 411,160       2,072,077    1,952,201    1,776,783    1,830,257    1,722,989    

% change 

YoY (YTD) (2.8%) 6.1% 9.9% (2.9%) 6.2% -  
 

 
 
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 6



2 

 

2. Total Aircraft Movements – January – March 2018 
 
Total Aircraft Movements include: Passenger and Cargo Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, General Aviation, 
Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights. Between January and March 2018 there were 9,029 which is a decrease of 
8.7% compared to the 9,898 flights for the same period in 2017. 
 

 
 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

% change 

YoY (YTD)

2018 3,032      2,860      3,137      9,029      (8.8%)

2017 3,150      3,164      3,584      3,667      4,008      4,187      4,376      4,357      3,907      3,624      3,299      3,096      44,419   3.9%

2016 2,703      2,778      3,249      3,166      3,459      3,904      4,242      4,355      4,182      3,851      3,541      3,338      42,768   9.3%

2015 2,775      2,927      3,307      3,231      3,393      3,587      3,768      3,716      3,529      3,337      2,768      2,792      39,130   -  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



3 

 

3. Airport & Airline News 
 
‘No-charge’ electric car charging sparks savings at Southampton Airport 

New electric car charging points at Southampton Airport have been up and 
running for just over a month, but the environmental impact is already 
being felt. 

The free charging bays have saved 205KW in their first five weeks of 
operation – equivalent to saving 143 kilograms of carbon dioxide emissions 

from the local atmosphere. 

There are six charging bays in the airport’s public car parks – four in short stay and two in priority parking. With no 
extra charges for this service, drivers simply hook up to a charging point and pay normal parking rates. 

Southampton Airport is delighted to announce the launch of its brand new 
training centre, EchoFour. 

EchoFour gives businesses from across the South the chance to receive the 
highest standard of training at a unique location. Each course is instructed by 
serving firefighters, creating an environment whereby ‘professional 

firefighters train professional 
people’. 

All courses offer full industry 
accreditation and there is also the opportunity to tailor training courses 
to meet specific company needs. 
Is it a bird? Is it a plane? No, it’s the new airport drone! 

Although it looks just like a falcon to the casual observer, the new 
arrival, named Robird®, is actually an ornithopter – a type of drone 
designed and flown to mimic the actions of a bird of prey, and used to 
deter real birds from airport. 

Whilst airports employ a wide range of methods to reduce the risk, if a bird does collide with an aircraft during landing 
or take off – known as a bird strike – this can create a threat to flight safety. Traditional bird scaring methods lose their 
impact over time and need to be backed up with lethal deterrents. The benefit of Robird® is that all types of birds 
including corvids, birds of prey, pigeons and gulls see the drone as a predator, and change their behaviour to keep well 
away. No harm comes to any bird through this method of bird control. 

easyJet to take off from Southampton again this winter 

Geneva flights are back from December 2018 following demand from ski 
passengers. 

Flights go on sale today (12 April) for the first flights of the new season with 
easyJet, Europe’s leading airline. The announcement follows a successful 
maiden season in 2017/2018 when easyjet launched its Southampton to 
Geneva route, aimed at winter sports enthusiasts. 

 

 

7



4 

 

4. Management and Staff 

Neil Garwood appointed Managing Director of Southampton Airport 

Neil joined Southampton Airport in October 2010 following six years in 
the rail freight sector. Initially responsible for management of the 
terminal facilities, Neil was quickly promoted to Head of Customer 
Service in July 2011.  

In March 2016, Neil took on the role of Head of Operations with 
responsibility for all operational activities across the airport including 
security, airfield, customer experience and the fire service. 

Neil took up his position on 1 June when Dave Lees will depart to take 
up the role of Chief Executive of Bristol Airport, commencing in August. 

Latest Breeze through Awards – January to March 2018 
 
January - Mandy Grinyer, Security Supervisor 
  
Mandy looked after a passenger who had been in a car crash on the 
way to the airport. She made sure the passenger was OK and 
onfortable and got her something to drink before she helped her 
through security and to her gate. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
February – Lee Banks, APCOA 
 
A regular passenger wrote in to say thank you to Lee for his continued 
help and support as well as his personal service that he provided 
during his time using the car park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March – Barry Proctor, Swissport  
 
Barry was the winner of the March Breeze award for his help and support 
to a lady who had a very bad fear of flying.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8



5 

 

5. Vortex  
 
There were no reported occurrences of vortex damage between January and March 2018. 
 
6. Community and Charity 

 

Southampton Airport welcomes RAF 100 Baton Relay runners at its 
Terminal. 

Southampton Airport has warmly welcomed Baton Relay runners as part 
of the Royal Air Force’s Centenary celebrations. 

RAF members have passed on a specially designed baton to members of 
the airport’s staff, which they carried to its next destination at Solent Sky 
Museum. 

 

7. Online and Social Media 

Twitter 
The account has reached over 40.2k followers and has proved invaluable for providing instant updates in times of 
disruption. To follow the airport, go to www.twitter.com/sou_airport  
 
Facebook 
Our Facebook page continues to grow and the number of ‘likes’ now sits at over 11k likes. 
www.facebook.com/sou.airport  
 
YouTube 
Our YouTube account features a range of videos of the airport, our airlines, visiting aircraft and passenger assistance 
features. The current amount of views is 64k. www.youtube.com/SOUAirport  
 
Blog 
Our Blog site is live and includes plenty of hints, tips and information on our destinations and routes. You can find our 
Blog at: http://www.southamptonairport.com/blog/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9

http://www.twitter.com/sou_airport
http://www.facebook.com/sou.airport
http://www.youtube.com/SOUAirport
http://www.southamptonairport.com/blog/


6 

 

 
Appendix A: Noise & Complaints Summary 

Supporting statistics 
 

During January to March 2018 and the comparison between years is as follows 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10



 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted by Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs  XXXXXX

 
 

 

 
  

 Southampton Airport 
Noise Action Plan 2018 - 2023 

11

Agenda Item 7



 

 2 

Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan 

 

Table of Contents 
Section 1 - Foreword by the Managing Director of Southampton Airport ....................................................... 3 

Section 2 – Executive Summary...................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan ............................................... 5 

Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Scope of the Noise Action Plan ................................................................................................................... 6 

Description ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Future Growth ........................................................................................................................................... 8 

Consultation .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Section 4 – Legislation ..................................................................................................................................10 

ICAO and the ‘Balanced Approach’ ............................................................................................................10 

European Union ........................................................................................................................................11 

UK government .........................................................................................................................................11 

Local Authorities .......................................................................................................................................12 

Section 5 – Background to aircraft noise and regulation ................................................................................13 

Section 6 - Measuring aircraft noise – noise contours ...................................................................................14 

Section 8 - Results of the Southampton Airport 2017 noise contour mapping ...............................................15 

Section 9 - Southampton Airport noise strategy & objectives ........................................................................18 

Section 10 – Noise Management at Southampton Airport .............................................................................19 

Section 106 Agreement .............................................................................................................................19 

Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit and Communities ...................................................................................20 

Noise Insulation and Land-use Planning ....................................................................................................21 

Aircraft technology ...................................................................................................................................21 

Section 11 - Noise Actions: Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan 2018 - 2023 ..........................................22 

Section 12 - Provisions for evaluating implementation of the Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan ..........26 

Appendices ...................................................................................................................................................27 

 

 

 

 

 

12



 

 3 

Section 1 - Foreword by the Managing Director of 

Southampton Airport  
 

Southampton Airport is an award winning regional airport owned by AGS Airports Ltd. The airport serves 

around 40 direct European destinations with great onward connections through major transport hubs like 

Schiphol, Amsterdam.  

 

Southampton Airport supports the growing commercial, leisure and cultural success of the region and provides 

air services that are valued for both business and leisure purposes. The airport remains one of the largest 

employment sites in the area supporting approximately 950 jobs and contributes in excess of £160 million per 

year to the region.  

 

Southampton Airport is conscious that it needs to reach a balance that allows growth in a sustainable manner 

whilst also enhancing the economic and social benefits to the region, but ultimately remaining a good 

neighbour to local residents. It is with this in mind Southampton Airport’s Noise Action Plan (NAP) details how 

it will continue to work proactively and in collaboration with a variety of stakeholders to mitigate noise from 

our activities.  

 

This new NAP runs from 2018-2023 and describes a range of measures that are in place to manage noise 

impacts from our activities.  The previous NAP was adopted by the Government at the end of 2011, however 

to align with European legislation and following Government guidance Southampton Airport revised and 

extended the NAP to cover the period 2013 -2018.   

 

Part of being a responsible neighbour and business means that Southampton Airport accepts it’s responsibility 

to the local community and has put in place a number of practical measures to manage noise over the last few 

years and into the future. These actions have resulted in a sustained reduction in noise complaints with the 

airport receiving only 30 complaints in 2017. 

 

Southampton Airport continues to work with our airline business partners to invest in aircraft fleet that are 

quieter and have improved environmental credentials; replacing older aircraft that have higher emissions and 

noisier engines. The introduction of precision based navigation will reduce the range of approaches that 

aircraft could make to the runway and will improve the overall noise profile for approaching aircraft. Positive 

improvements like this provide clear demonstration of how Southampton Airport is working towards reducing 

noise impacts for many local areas.  

 

Southampton Airport is confident that this new and updated version of the NAP continues to demonstrate the 

importance that the airport places on the issue of noise and our aim to minimise the impact of noise from 

aviation operations wherever practicable. 

 

 

Southampton Airport 

March 2018 

13



 

 4 

Section 2 – Executive Summary 
 

The Environmental Noise Directive requires certain civil airports in England to produce noise maps and Action 

Plans. The Directive operates in five yearly cycles known as Rounds, with the current round (Round 3) requiring 

the operators of these airports to produce noise maps in 2017, using data from the 2016 calendar year. 

 

The Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan identified the actions and measures that Southampton Airport is 

taking to minimise the impact of aircraft noise on local communities both now and in the future.  The noise 

action plan covers the period from 2018 to 2023 and is planned to be adopted by the Secretary of State for 

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in January 2019. 

 

In June 2016, the EU referendum took place and the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union. Until 

exit negotiations are concluded, the UK remains a full member of the European Union and all the rights and 

obligations of EU membership remain in force. During this period the Government will continue to negotiate, 

implement and apply EU legislation.  

 

The revised Noise Action Plan 2018-2023 was issued to the Southampton Airport Consultative Committee and 

to the wider public at the beginning of April 2018 with a six week consultation ending on 8 May 2018.  The 

committee consists of a broad range of members including public representatives such as councillors, 

residents associations and interest groups.  This process followed the guidance of DEFRA.   

 

This revised Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan details the long term strategy the airport has set to 

manage noise including the overall objective: 

 

Continuing to work within the framework established by national and local government, the airport will be 

a responsible neighbour and seek to minimise the impact of aircraft noise on the local community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



 

 5 

Section 3 - Purpose and scope of the Southampton Airport 

Noise Action Plan 
 

Purpose 

The purpose of the Noise Action Plan is to set out our plan to manage and, where practical and possible, reduce 

the adverse effects of aviation noise. As part of the process to produce this new 2018 – 2023 plan, 

Southampton Airport has reviewed the 2013 – 2018 Noise Action Plan, and held public consultation with local 

communities and stakeholders.  

 

During the period of the noise action plan for 2013 – 2018 Southampton Airport have made significant 

progress with addressing noise issues however we recognise the importance of continuing to manage aircraft 

noise responsibly with our local communities. Southampton Airport supports the Air Navigation Guidance 

objective to limit and, where possible, reduce the number of people in the UK significantly affected by adverse 

impacts from aircraft noise.  

 

Southampton Airport has introduced updates and enhancements to our current actions to build upon the 

progress it has made over the past five years working with our neighbours and stakeholders. 

 

Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan basis 

Southampton Airport has been defined as a major airport for the purposes of the Noise Regulations and as 

such is required to complete this noise action planning process.   

 

Noise regulation contours are specific types of contour that have a defined methodology under the Noise 

Directive.  These contours are modelled with aircraft movements and noise impacts split into distinct times of 

the day (day / evening / night). The Lden contour is a combined contour covering all three periods.  Additional 

artificial weightings are added to evening and night time movements.  These contours are discussed in more 

detail later in this document and additional detail is available in the technical glossary and abbreviations 

section in Appendix A. 

 

The noise contour maps have been defined by the European Union (EU) Environmental Noise Directive 

2002/49/EU (END) and are intended to: 

 

- Provide a basis for future strategy and policy making to tackle noise issues 

- Establish a baseline for 2016 noise levels 

- To assist in the development of co-ordinated Noise Action Plans. 

 

The Noise Regulations require noise action plans to be based on the results from the noise regulation contour 

maps, which were produced in 2017 for 2016. This Noise Action Plan focuses on areas affected by noise from 

the airport as identified by the updated 2016 noise contours.   

 

15



 

 6 

However, Southampton Airport recognises that the population affected by aircraft noise extends beyond these 

noise contours.   To address this, the Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan goes beyond the recommended 

scope of the Guidance for airport operators for producing noise action plans by proposing to continue or 

implement noise actions that aim to provide benefits to areas outside of these contours and the defined 

agglomeration. Southampton Airport has updated its noise contours on an annual basis since 2011. 

 

Scope of the Noise Action Plan 

This Noise Action Plan complies with the European Union (EU) Environmental Noise Directive 2002/49/EU 

(END) and associated UK government regulations. The airport operator (Southampton Airport Limited) is 

deemed the competent authority for preparing the Noise Action Plan. Guidance from UK government states 

that Noise Action Plans should be designed to manage noise issues and effects arising from aircraft departing 

from and arriving at the airport, including noise reduction if necessary. The scope of the Southampton Airport 

Noise Action Plan does not include any noise from road and rail traffic associated with the airport.   

 

Noise maps for major road and rail routes in the vicinity of Southampton Airport are produced by other parties.  

Details of these are available on the following website: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/open-

data-strategic-noise-mapping. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/open-data-strategic-noise-mapping
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/open-data-strategic-noise-mapping


 

 7 

Description  

Southampton Airport is located in the borough of Eastleigh, just north of the city of Southampton in 

Hampshire.  Over one hundred years ago, in 1910, the first aircraft took off from an area of flat land which has 

now been developed into Southampton Airport.  In 2017 Southampton Airport achieved the milestone of 2 

million passengers and it is expected to see steady growth in years to come. Routes from Southampton Airport 

enable passengers to travel to around 40 destinations throughout mainland Europe, the Channel Islands, and 

the UK. 

 

Typically the aircraft that fly in and out of Southampton Airport are modern, regional aircraft, such as the 

Embraer 195 (118 seats) and the Bombardier Dash 8 Q400 (78 seats). 

 

The most popular reasons for using Southampton Airport are business, leisure and visiting friends and relatives as 

shown in Figure 1. 

 

 
Figure 1: Reasons for using Southampton Airport in 2017 

 

Southampton Airport is bordered directly to the south by the M27 motorway which runs east to west and also 

connects to the M3.  To the east of the airport lies the Itchen Valley Country Park.  To the north lies a largely industrial 

area in Eastleigh, which continues to be used by the rail industry as sidings and maintenance depots.  There is also 

warehousing and other heavy industry located in this area.  Directly to the west of the airport lies the dual track rail 

line which serves both passenger and freight trains, including regular services to London Waterloo.  Southampton 

Airport Parkway station is the main rail station to the airport.  The A335 Wide Lane / Southampton Road also runs 

adjacent to the airport, next to which there are university playing fields.  There are also some residential dwellings to 

the northwest of the airport which have been recently expanded. The airport is geographically situated in a natural 

gentle depression or “bowl” due to the surrounding topography. 

 

17



 

 8 

 
Figure 2: Diagrammatic representation of connectivity for Southampton Airport 

 

Local population in the Eastleigh / Southampton “Agglomeration” 

According to the Office of National Statistics and the latest available 2011 Census Data, the Borough of 

Eastleigh has a population of 125,200 and Southampton has a population of 239,400. 

 

Future Growth 

In March 2013, the UK Government published its Aviation Policy Framework.  This superseded the 2003 Air 

Transport White Paper and sets out the long term strategy to enable the UK aviation sector to flourish and 

support economic growth whilst at the same time addressing environmental issues such as noise and carbon 

emissions. 

 

Southampton Airport is ideally located to serve central southern England which means that additional ground 

transport movements to larger London hub airports is reduced.  In 2017, 2 million passengers travelled through 

Southampton Airport and there were 44,418 air transport movements. 

 

Southampton Airport plans to publish its Master Plan in 2018 following public consultation.  The Master Plan 

details the expected future growth and how the airport plans to manage this. For further information about 

the Master Plan go to: http://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-vision/ 

 

The DEFRA Guidance for Airport Operators acknowledged that noise is an inevitable consequence of a mature 

and vibrant society and that people enjoy and benefit from air transport in terms of business, leisure, the 

movement of goods and employment opportunities. 

 

 

 

 

18

http://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-vision/


 

 9 

Consultation 

The revised Noise Action Plan 2018-2023 was issued to the Southampton Airport Consultative Committee and 

to the wider public at the beginning of April 2018 with a six week consultation ending on 8 May 2018.  The 

committee consists of a broad range of members including public representatives such as MPs, councillors, 

residents associations and interest groups.  This process followed the guidance of DEFRA.   

 

Following the public consultation, the outcome of the consultation and the proposed actions and amendments 

to the Noise Action Plan were presented for endorsement at the Technical Working Group and the Airport 

Consultative Committee.  

 

The final version of the Noise Action Plan will be published by January 2019 and incorporate a record of 

consultation responses and how Southampton Airport has taken these into consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19



 

 10 

Section 4 – Legislation 
 

The mitigation and management of aircraft noise relies heavily on National and International initiatives and 

regulation imposed by: 

 

• The International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO); 

• The European Union; 

• The UK Government; 

• Local authorities; and 

• Southampton International Airport itself. 

 

ICAO and the ‘Balanced Approach’ 

ICAO is a specialised agency of the United Nations, created to promote the safe and orderly development of 

international civil aviation throughout the world. It sets standards and regulations necessary for aviation 

safety, security, efficiency and regularity, as well as for aviation environmental protection. After a Standard is 

adopted it is put into effect by each ICAO member state in its own territories. 

 

ICAO recognises that aircraft noise is the most significant cause of adverse community reaction related to the 

operation and expansion of airports and it requires all of its member states to adhere to an approach to 

managing aircraft noise known as the ‘Balanced Approach’. The Balanced Approach aims to address noise 

management in an environmentally responsive and economically responsible way, and encompasses four 

principal elements: 

 

1. Reduction of noise at source; 

2. Land-use planning and management; 

3. Noise abatement operational procedures; and 

4. Operating restrictions on aircraft. 

Our Noise Action Plan embraces the Balanced Approach and the plan outlined in Section 11 adopts this format. 

ICAO is also responsible for aircraft certification and it has set progressively tighter certification standards for 

noise emissions from civil aircraft. Aircraft operating in member states must conform to these standards, 

which are known as ‘Chapters’.  

The Chapters set maximum acceptable noise levels for different aircraft under specific test conditions. Chapter 

2 aircraft have been banned from the EU since 1 April 2002, unless they are granted specific exemptions. The 

vast majority of civil aircraft now operating therefore fall within Chapters 3 and 4, i.e. they have a smaller noise 

footprint than the previous Chapter 2 aircraft. All new aircraft manufactured from 2006 onwards must meet 

the requirements of Chapter 4. 

 

In 2014 the ICAO Council adopted the new Chapter 14 noise standard for jet and propeller-driven aircraft. This 

will be the mainstay of ICAO aircraft noise regulations for the coming years. It is applicable to new aircraft 

types submitted for certification on or after 31 December 2017, and on or after 31 December 2020 for aircraft 

less than 55 tonnes in weight.  

20



 

 11 

European Union 

There are several European Union directives and regulations that apply to the regulation of aircraft noise. 

 EC Directive 92/14/EEC banned Chapter 2 aircraft from landing in the EU from 1 April 2002. 

 EC Directive 2002/49 (known as the ‘Environmental Noise Directive’) requires member states to 

publish noise maps and noise management action plans for major airports (more than 50,000 

movements a year) every 5 years.  

 EC Directive 2002/49 (known as the ‘Environmental Noise Directive’) requires strategic noise maps to 

be produced for the main sources of environmental noise (major roads, major railways, major airports) 

and for agglomerations in England. (See appendix C) 

 Regulation (EU) No.598/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on the 

establishment of rules and procedures with regard to the introduction of noise related operating 

restrictions at union airports within a Balanced Approach. 

 

UK government 

The UK Government plays an important role in setting policy for aviation noise management. The Civil Aviation 

Acts of 1982 and 2006 granted the UK Government the power to introduce mitigation and noise control 

measures.  

 

In accordance with EC directive 2002/49 (Environmental Noise Directive), there are UK Statutory Instruments 

for the Environmental Noise (England) Regulations 2006 as amended. This Noise Action Plan is in accordance 

with these statutory instruments.  

 

The 2013 Aviation Policy Framework (APF) set out the challenges of noise control at airports, and noted the 

Government’s recognition of the Balanced Approach principle of aircraft noise management. More recently, 

the UK Government has published, and consulted on, its Airspace Policy (AP) framework.  

 

The Government’s consultation response on the AP provides an update to the some of the policies on aviation 

noise outlined in the APF and should be viewed as current Government policy. 

 

The Government has also published the Air Navigation Guidance 2017, which provides guidance to the CAA 

on its environmental objectives when carrying out its air navigation functions, and to the CAA and wider 

industry on airspace and noise management. Importantly the AP sets out a range of new proposals that the 

Government will implement that are relevant to the Noise Action Plan: 

Changes to aviation noise compensation policy; 

The creation of an Independent Commission on Civil Aviation Noise (ICCAN); and      

New metrics and appraisal guidance to assess noise impacts and their impacts on health and quality 

of life. 

 

21



 

 12 

Changes to aviation noise compensation policy 

The Government has proposed a number of changes to aviation noise compensation policy in order to improve 

fairness and transparency. Southampton Airport supports these proposals and will take them into account in 

the development of our Noise Insulation Scheme: please refer to section 11 for further information.  

 

The independent commission on civil aviation noise 

The Government has proposed the creation of an Independent Commission on Civil Aviation Noise (ICCAN). 

ICCAN will be responsible for creating, compiling and disseminating best practice to the aviation industry on 

the management of civil aviation noise and will be responsible for advising government in this area. 

Southampton Airport supports these proposals and will carefully consider any relevant best practice guidance 

published by ICCAN. 

 

New metrics and appraisal guidance for assessing noise impacts 

Long term exposure to environmental noise such as road, rail and aircraft noise can lead to impacts on health 

and quality of life. This is recognised and addressed in noise policy which aims to avoid, mitigate and minimise 

the adverse impacts of noise on health, in the context of sustainable development. Southampton Airport 

shares these objectives and have adopted them as part of our Noise Action Plan. 

 

Thresholds for noise assessment are defined in current government policy in terms of the Lowest Observable 

Adverse Effect Level (LOAEL). The LOAEL is the level above which adverse effects on health and quality of life 

can be detected. Current policy proposes a LOAEL of 51 dB LAeq, 16hr based on the most recent large-scale 

research study in the UK on aircraft noise (Survey of Noise Attitudes 2014: Aviation, SoNA).  

 

A night-time LOAEL of 45dB LAeq, 8hr is also proposed in the policy, based on the Government’s current 

monetisation methodology (known as WebTAG) and the World Health Organisation’s methodological 

guidance for estimating the burden of disease from environmental noise. Southampton Airport supports such 

proposals to assess noise down to these thresholds and has reflected this in its noise mapping. 

 

Local Authorities 

Section 106 Planning Obligations  

Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, commonly known as s106 

agreements, are operational conditions to which Southampton Airport is bound. They are focused on site 

specific mitigations of the impact of development and operations. The planning obligation is a formal 

document issued and monitored by Eastleigh Borough Council.  

 

 

 

 

22



 

 13 

Section 5 – Background to aircraft noise and regulation 
 

Air noise is created by aircraft approaching or taking off from airports and by aircraft taxiing/manoeuvring 

around the airfield.   

 

This noise is caused by two things:  

 By air moving over the aircraft’s fuselage (body) and wings – known as the airframe 

 By the aircraft’s engines themselves. 

 

When air moves over the aircraft’s body, it causes friction and turbulence, which make noise.  The amount of 

noise created varies according to aircraft size and type as well as the way the aircraft is flown such as speed, 

the angle of approach and the way in which wing flaps are deployed.  This means noise can differ even for 

identical aircraft.  Engine noise is created by the sound of the engine’s moving parts and by the sound of the 

air being expelled at high speed once it has passed through the engine.  

 

Departing aircraft create noise when taking off due to the high degree of thrust required.  This creates noise 

from the aircraft’s engines.  However, this allows aircraft to climb quickly and therefore reduce their noise 

impact by flying at a higher altitude.  Air moving over the airframe of arriving aircraft generates noise, as the 

aircraft becomes less aerodynamic in order to slow down.  However the thrust and thus engine noise is 

reduced.  Nevertheless landing aircraft are closer to the ground for a longer distance which may increase noise 

disturbance over a wider area.  

 

Aircraft being manufactured today are considerably quieter than 20 years ago.  It is expected that today’s 

aircraft will be replaced by even quieter models in the future.  Although aircraft engines are quieter, there are 

more aircraft flying today.  This means that whilst average levels of noise per aircraft movement are lower 

than before, the frequency of aircraft movements has increased and hence noise “events” have increased.    At 

Southampton Airport, the number of aircraft movements have increased from 40,501 in 2013 to 44,419 in 

2017. 

 

Noise is a very subjective issue and each person reacts differently.  A noise which one person is affected by 

may not necessarily affect the next person.  The time of the day, location and circumstances of any noise heard 

can all produce different reactions.  Attitudes and reactions to noise are as important as the noise level 

experienced, but these attitudes are less understood than the technical science of sound-generation and 

measurement.   

Air Quality & CO2 Interdependencies  

 

There are a number of interdependencies which affect noise management including the emission of local air 

pollutants and carbon dioxide (CO2) from aircraft engines.  Most of the technological advances in aircraft 

design in the last 20 years have led to both a reduction in noise and CO2 emissions.  However in some cases, 

the drive towards quieter aircraft has resulted in an increase in emissions of local air pollutants, such as oxides 

of nitrogen (NOx).  The challenge for the aviation industry is to manage and balance these three issues 

simultaneously. 

23



 

 14 

Section 6 - Measuring aircraft noise – noise contours  
 

Noise contours are the common method used in the UK and internationally to measure and assess aircraft 

noise around airports.  Noise contours are produced using sophisticated computer modelling software, based 

on an array of inputs. These inputs typically include the number of flights at an airport, the type of aircraft 

operating and performance of that particular aircraft, the routes that the aircraft take and assumptions about 

how the aircraft are operated at each airport.  As noise can be a subjective issue, noise contours are used to 

quantify and assess noise impacts more quantitatively.  There are a number of variables that can affect how 

noise is heard on the ground including: background noise levels, distance from the noise source, elevation 

above ground level, the phase of flight an aircraft is in when it passes over and the weather conditions at the 

time such as wind or cloud cover which affect the way in which sound travels. 

 

Routine noise contours - average summer day 16-hour LAeq contours 

Every year the airport commissions detailed noise modelling using the CAA Environmental Research and 

Consultancy Department (ERCD).  The output of this modelling is an estimate of the average aircraft related 

noise experienced by people living around an airport during the busier summer period.   

 

This provides average noise levels for the busiest time in terms of the number of aircraft movements during 

the 16 hour period 07:00 to 23:00.  This includes the busiest three months of the year, from mid-June to mid-

September, when the number of aircraft movements peak.  These noise contours are the most common 

international measure of aircraft noise.  Southampton Airport provides these noise contours to Eastleigh 

Borough Council each year and they are presented to the Southampton Airport Consultative Committee to 

illustrate the noise climate for the previous year of operation. 

 

Noise regulation contours – average annual day dB Lden contours 

The Environmental Noise (England) Regulations 2006 requires that strategic noise mapping should be 

conducted at five yearly intervals.  Unlike the conventional average summer day 16-hour dB LAeq routine 

contours which are used to evaluate noise changes at the airport each year, the regulations require the 

contours to cover different periods of the day, known as: (L)day, (L)evening, (L)night,  and dB (L)den (day, 

evening & night combined).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

24



 

 15 

Section 8 - Results of the Southampton Airport 2017 noise 

contour mapping 
 

Southampton airport produces annual noise contours which are modelled by the ERCD in accordance with the 

Government Noise Regulations.  Tables 1 to 5 show the various results of the noise mapping including the 

area, population and households potentially exposed to noise within each of the prescribed contour bandings.  

Data from Lday, Levening, Lnight, Lden and LAeq noise contours has been included.   

 

This assessment was carried out utilising a strategic residential population location dataset. The following 

paragraphs summarise the method used in constructing this dataset. 

 

Residential dwellings and buildings containing residential dwellings were identified through the 2015 

(OS) AddressBase Premium and Topography layer respectively. An average population per residential 

dwelling was calculated for each discrete dwelling utilising population data attained from the mid-

year population estimates from the Office of National Statistics (ONS), June 2015.  

 

The total number of residential dwellings and the total associated population were calculated for each 

residential building polygon (the building’s footprint), taking into account building polygons with 

multiple dwellings. Examples of building polygons containing multiple dwellings located within a single 

polygon include tower blocks and apartments. 

 

The estimated total number of people and dwellings exposed above various noise levels in 2016 derived from 

the strategic mapping of noise from aircraft using this airport are shown in the tables below.  

 

Population and dwelling counts have been rounded as follows:  

 The number of dwellings has been rounded to the nearest 50, except when the number of dwellings 

is greater than zero but less than 50, in which case the total has been shown as “< 50”.  

 The associated population has been rounded to the nearest 100, except when the associated 

population is greater than zero but less than 100, in which case the total has been shown as “< 100”.  

 

Noise Level (dB)  Number of 

Dwellings  

Number of 

People  

≥ 55  2,350  5,600  

≥ 60  300  800  

≥ 65  0  0  

≥ 70  0  0  

≥ 75  0  0  

Table 1: Estimated total number of people and dwellings above various noise levels, Lden 

Note: Table 1 is a specific indicator required by the Environmental Noise Directive and is reported in the 5dB 

bands defined by the Directive. Tables 2 to 5 use routine UK aviation banding. 

 

 

25



 

 16 

 

 

 

 

Noise Level (dB)  Number of 

Dwellings  

Number of 

People  

≥ 54  3,850  9,300  

≥ 57  1,250  3,000  

≥ 60  400  1,000  

≥ 63  <50  <100  

≥ 66  0  0  

≥ 69  0  0  

Table 2: Estimated total number of people and dwellings above various noise levels, Lday 

 

 

Noise Level (dB)  Number of 

Dwellings  

Number of 

People  

≥ 54  2,100  4,900  

≥ 57  700  1,700  

≥ 60  100  300  

≥ 63  <50  <100  

≥ 66  0  0  

≥ 69  0  0  

Table 3: Estimated total number of people and dwellings above various noise levels, Levening 

 

 

Noise Level (dB) Number of 

Dwellings 

Number of 

People 

≥ 54 3,450 8,200 

≥ 57 1,100 2,700 

≥ 60 350 800 

≥ 63 <50 <100 

≥ 66 0 0 

≥ 69 0 0 

Table 4: Estimated total number of people and dwellings above various noise levels, LAeq, 16h 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 

 17 

 

 

Noise Level (dB)  Number of 

Dwellings  

Number of 

People  

≥ 48  0  0  

≥ 51  0  0  

≥ 54  0  0  

≥ 57  0  0  

≥ 60  0  0  

≥ 63  0  0  

≥ 66  0  0  

Table 5: Estimated total number of people and dwellings above various noise levels, Lnight 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



 

 18 

Section 9 - Southampton Airport noise strategy & objectives 
 

Southampton Airport has set the following long term objective for the management of aircraft noise: 

 

Continuing to work within the framework established by national and local government, the airport will be 

a responsible neighbour and seek to minimise the impact of aircraft noise on the local community. 

 

Southampton Airport supports the growing commercial, leisure and cultural success of the region and provides 

air services that are valued for both business and leisure purposes. The airport remains one of the largest 

employment sites supporting around 950 jobs and contributes in excess of £160 million per year to the region.  

 

As well as the benefits provided by the airport, Southampton Airport recognises that aircraft noise can be an 

important issue for local communities. Although the noise generated by the airport cannot be eliminated, 

Southampton Airport is conscious that it is important to reach a balance that allows growth in a sustainable 

manner whilst also enhancing the economic and social benefits to the region, and ultimately remaining a good 

neighbour to local residents.  

 

This Noise Action Plan therefore sets out our plan to manage and, where practical, reduce the adverse effects 

of aircraft related noise. Southampton Airport has introduced updates and enhancements to its current 

actions to build upon the progress it has made over the past five years working proactively and in collaboration 

with a variety of stakeholders and neighbours.  

 

Southampton Airport has reviewed the four key strategic themes that were published as part of the 2013 – 

2018 Noise Action Plan and intend to keep these existing themes; however we plan to build upon the work 

already undertaken within these areas as well as ensuring that these are developed within the framework set 

out in the ICAO Balanced Approach to Aircraft Noise Management. 

 

Below are our five strategic themes for 2018 – 2023 and within Section 11 of this Noise Action Plan there are 

full details of the actions and proposed new actions set against these themes.  

 

1.) Demonstrate our continuing commitment to managing aircraft noise at source. 

 

2.) Engaging with our local communities affected by aircraft noise to better understand their concerns 

and priorities, and responding to these as far as practically possible in noise strategies and 

communication plans. 

 

3.) Influencing planning policy to minimise the number of noise sensitive properties around Southampton 

Airport. 

 

4.) Organising ourselves to manage noise efficiently and effectively, achieving a full understanding of 

aircraft noise to inform our priorities, strategies and targets. 

 

5.) Ensuring Southampton Airport has effective Noise Abatement Operational Procedures. 

 

28



 

 19 

Section 10 – Noise Management at Southampton Airport  
 

The airport currently has in place a number of mitigation measures to manage and reduce the adverse effects 

of airport related noise. Alongside this, Southampton Airport has built upon the progress made across the last 

five years to introduce some significant updates and additions to its current measures in line with the latest 

developments in policy and research relating to noise.  

 

Section 106 Agreement 

Southampton Airport adheres to a strict agreement, which since its inception in 1990 has been designed to 

minimise the impact of the airport operation on the local community. This agreement forms part of our 

planning agreement with Eastleigh Borough Council, and is legally binding. It includes: 

 

Night time closure 

There are very strict limits on the number of scheduled night flights that Southampton Airport may operate 

during the night period. The night period is defined from 23:00 to 06:00, or to 07:30 on Sunday mornings. The 

airport is permitted to operate 10 scheduled night flights per month, but not more than 100 in any 12 month 

period. However, occasionally flights operate during these times for unexpected reasons such as poor weather 

or as a result of en-route air traffic control delays. Additionally some ambulance flights carrying patients or 

transporting donor organs are accepted during night hours, for emergency medical reasons. 

 

Noise preferred routeing of aircraft 

Noise preferred routes for departing aircraft and for aircraft arriving ‘visually’ (in good visibility) were 

introduced in 2007 following a wide scale consultation with local stakeholders, residents and councils. These 

routeings aim to divert aircraft away from the most densely populated areas where it is possible to do so. The 

airport ensures, as far as is reasonably practical, that aircraft using the airport adhere to the preferred routes. 

There are however occasions when the noise preferred routes cannot be followed by aircraft and examples of 

this are the avoidance of poor weather or other air traffic in the area.  

 

Strict limits on helicopter movements 

The annual number of daytime helicopter movements is restricted, and helicopter movements are banned 

during night hours, in order to minimise the noise for our neighbours. 

 

Ban on noisier types of aircraft 

Noisier aircraft which do not meet strict industry standards, referred to as ICAO ‘Chapter 3’, are not permitted 

to visit Southampton Airport. The airport was one of the first in the country to ban aircraft that do not meet 

this standard. 

 

29



 

 20 

Strict limits on aircraft training movements 

The number of flying training movements is restricted. Although some flying training takes place, this has 

significantly reduced in recent years. 

 

Engine ground running 

There are strict limits on the times, the location and the number of occasions that aircraft engine ground 

running can take place, which is required for engine testing. No engine ground running is permitted during 

night hours. 

 

 

In summary, this agreement is of great significance in minimising the impact of aircraft noise on the local 

community and provides governance on the way that Southampton Airport operates. Monitoring and 

reporting against these regulations are undertaken at the Southampton Airport Consultative Committee. 

 

Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit and Communities 

Southampton Airport monitor aircraft noise issues, and record and investigate complaints and enquiries 

received from the local community through our dedicated Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit.  The unit is manned 

during office hours by specially trained staff that can answer any questions and provide information on noise 

initiatives.  

 

Southampton Airport operates a Noise telephone line (02380 62 7070) and a dedicated email address 

(sounoisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com) through which complaints are logged onto our system. A key 

part of our noise strategy is to give out as much information as possible and to provide our neighbours and 

stakeholders with an insight into airport activities.  Southampton Airport report on the number of complaints 

received as part of the Technical Working Group and Consultative Committee.   

 

Following the introduction of NoiseDesk software in 2018, Southampton Airport now use this system to: 

- Track and report on adherence to noise preferred routes 

- Monitor NPR deviations and quickly address these with airlines 

- Investigate noise complaints and identify specific flights in relation to post code.  

 

Subsequent to the implementation of the new software, the airport is working with airlines to introduce a full 

Local Operating Procedure to be followed in the event of a deviation from a noise preferred route. More details 

of this can be found in Section 11.  

 

 

 
 

30

mailto:sounoisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com


 

 21 

Noise Insulation and Land-use Planning 

Southampton Airport engages directly with the local planning authorities to ensure awareness of aircraft 

operations is considered in the development of sensitive land use. As part of this the airport contributes to 

local development plans and seeks to influence policy where appropriate. 

 

The Government’s current aviation policy is set out in the Aviation Policy Framework (APF). The Consultation 

Response on UK Airspace Policy provide a recent update to some of the policies on aviation noise contained 

within the APF, and is considered to represent the current government policy. The policy now requires 

financial assistance to be offered towards the noise insulation of residential properties in the 63dBLAeq, 16h 

noise contour or above. 

 

Southampton Airport is proposing to update its noise insulation scheme to reflect these recent changes in 

aviation policy: see Section 11 for further details and Section 8 table 4.  

 

Aircraft technology 

As part of the AGS group (Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton Airports), Southampton Airport are 

represented within Sustainable Aviation, an alliance of UK airlines, airports, aerospace manufacturers and air 

navigation service providers. The group members regularly attend and contribute to the meetings of 

Sustainable Aviation and work with our partners to promote research and development of even quieter 

aircraft. 

 

Modern aircraft are now significantly quieter than the first generation of jet aircraft, and ICAO are setting 

progressively tighter noise certification standards for new aircraft. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

31



 

 22 

Section 11 - Noise Actions: Southampton Airport Noise 

Action Plan 2018 - 2023  
 

 Action Timescale Performance Indicator No. of People 

 Actions closed from last NAP 

1 

Southampton Airport will evaluate and 

install an updated aircraft tracking system to 

improve the accuracy of the existing track 

keeping system.  This will help to evaluate 

and assess flights, particularly for aircraft at 

lower levels and allow enhanced feedback to 

be given to the community living 

immediately to the North or South of the 

runway.    

2015-18 
System installed and 

operational 
n/a 

2 

Southampton Airport will undertake a 

Stakeholder Consultation for Airspace 

Change Proposal for changes for GNSS 

approaches to the south.  

2013 

Consultation was 

undertaken between 8th 

October 2013 and  31st 

January 2014 

n/a 

3 
Southampton Airport will publish a report on 

the GNSS consultation findings 
2014 

The report was 

published on 30th April 

2014 and GNSS went 

live on 2nd April 2018 

n/a 

 Reduction of noise at source 

4 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

operate a differentiated aircraft charging 

system to discourage noisier aircraft Classed 

as Chapter 3 High aircraft 

Ongoing  

Number of flight 

movements of Chapter 

3 and 4 aircraft. 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

5 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

undertake reviews of the differentiated 

aircraft charging system on an annual basis 

to discourage noisier aircraft. 

Annual review 

Number of affected 

movements since 

introduction. 

n/a 

6 

We will continue to work with our partners 

in the aerospace sector through Sustainable 

Aviation to achieve the visionary noise goals 

of FlightPath 2050 which seek to achieve a 

65% reduction in perceived noise, or 15dB, 

from aircraft by 2050 compared to 2000. 

Ongoing 

Progress against the EU 

Flightpath 2050 target 

of a 65% reduction in 

perceived noise, or 

15dB, from aircraft by  

2050 compared to 2000 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



 

 23 

 Action Timescale Performance Indicator No. of People 

Noise Abatement Operational Procedures 

7 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

restrict aircraft operations during the night 

time period from 23:00 hrs to 06:00 hrs 

(Mon-Sat) and 23:00 to 07:30 hrs on Sundays 

(with permitted exceptions as per the Flying 

Controls Agreement). 

Ongoing  

Number of movements 

reported to Airport 

Consultative 

Committee. 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

8 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

prohibit helicopter movements during the 

night time period from 23:00 hrs to 06:00 

hrs and 07:30hrs to 23:00hrs on Sundays. 

Ongoing  

Number of movements 

reported to Airport 

Consultative 

Committee. 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

9 

The number of helicopter movements will 

continue to be restricted to 7,500 

movements a year (during the day).  

Helicopter training flights will also continue 

to be limited to air crew familiarisation with 

the airport. 

Ongoing  

Number of movements 

reported to Airport 

Consultative 

Committee. 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

10 

Southampton Airport will continue to ban 

noisier Chapter 2 aircraft i.e. aircraft that do 

not meet the standards of ICAO Annex 16 

Chapter 3 or FAA FAR Part 36 Stage 3. 

Southampton Airport will also adhere to the 

ICAO Chapter 14 noise standard for jet and 

propeller-driven aircraft, applicable to new 

aircraft from 31st December 2017. 

Ongoing  

Reported to Technical 

Working Group 

Annually 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

11 

Southampton Airport will continue to apply 

and monitor the agreed Noise Preferred 

Routes for aircraft.   

Ongoing  

Noise preferred route 

infringements to follow 

LOP and addressed with 

airlines 

Communities 

within close 

proximity to 

the airport 

12 

Southampton Airport will continue to use 

aircraft track keeping systems to proactively 

monitor aircraft routing and report off track 

occurrences to airlines.  

Ongoing  

Noise preferred route 

infringements reported 

to the Technical 

Working Group.  

n/a 

13 

 

Following the implementation of the 

‘NoiseDesk’ system, Southampton Airport 

will publish a Local Operating Procedure to 

outline the process of addressing NPR 

deviations with our airlines including 

financial penalties. 

   

12 months 

after adoption 

of NAP 

Review and report  

within 12 months of  

implementation 

n/a 

 
 

 

33



 

 24 

 Action Timescale Performance Indicator No. of People 

Working with local communities 

14 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

operate the Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit. 

This includes: 

- Logging and responding to all complaints 

and enquiries received 

- Investigating and seeking further 

explanation from ATC and airlines where 

required.  

- Providing statistics and reporting these to 

the Consultative Committee three times a 

year 

Ongoing  

Number of callers and 

confirmed noise 

complaints associated 

with the airport each 

month. 

n/a 

15 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

communicate to stakeholders by publishing 

information on the airport website and also 

through communicating through forums 

around key noise initiatives such as aircraft 

routing. 

Ongoing  

Positive feedback from 

Southampton Airport 

Community, 

Stakeholder 

Conferences and Airport 

Consultative Committee 

n/a 

16 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

present key noise issues to the Southampton 

Airport Consultative Committee & Technical 

Working Group as appropriate. 

Ongoing  Meeting minutes n/a 

17 

Southampton Airport will provide feedback 

on our progress against the Noise Action 

Plan on a regular basis to Airport 

Consultative Committee. 

Annually  

Progress of actions 

reported through 

Airport Consultative 

Committee 

n/a 

18 

Southampton Airport will commission and 

publish noise regulation (Lden) contours 

annually, to monitor the effectiveness of the 

measures in this Noise Action Plan. 

Bi-annually  

Submit contours to 

Eastleigh Borough 

Council and publish on 

Southampton Airport 

website 

n/a 

19 

Southampton Airport will undertake a 

review of the results of the annual noise 

regulation (Lden) contours  

Bi-annually 

Reviews reported 

through Airport 

Consultative Committee 

n/a 

20 

Southampton Airport will deploy noise 

monitors at the direction of Technical 

Working Group to address any specific noise 

related issues.  The data from monitoring 

will be published on the airport website and 

presented to Airport Consultative 

Committee 

Upon direction 

of the TWG 

Findings reported to the 

Technical Working 

Group  

n/a 

  

34



 

 25 

 Action Timescale Performance Indicator No. of People 

Influencing planning policy to minimise the number of noise sensitive properties around our airports 

21 

We will continue to engage with the local 

planning authorities to ensure awareness of 

aircraft operations is considered in the 

development of sensitive land use. 

Ongoing 
Annual review with 

local planning authority. 
n/a 

22 

Southampton Airport will continue to 

commission an independent noise specialist 

to produce routine 16hr Summer Leq noise 

contours each year to evaluate the noise 

climate at the airport.  

Annually  

Submitted to Eastleigh 

Borough Council and 

review through the 

Airport Consultative 

Committee.  

n/a 

23 

We will develop and implement a Noise 

Insulation Policy to mitigate noise for 

residents most affected by aircraft noise in 

line with UK Airspace Policy. 

  

Policy to be finalised 

and published within 12 

months of adoption of 

this Noise Action Plan.  

Residential 

properties 

within the 

63dB LAeq, 16h 

contour 

 
Organising ourselves to manage noise efficiently and effectively, achieving a full understanding of aircraft 

noise to inform our priorities, strategies and targets. 

24 

Our Noise Action Plan is consistent with the 

ICAO Balanced Approach. Southampton 

Airport will continually review the 

effectiveness of our mitigation measures in 

the context of the balanced approach to 

ensure that mitigation is considered in a 

consistent way with a view to addressing 

noise impacts in the most cost-effective way. 

Ongoing  

Tracking of Noise  

Action Plan and  

mitigation measures 

n/a 

25 

The Government has proposed the creation 

of an Independent Commission on Civil 

Aviation Noise (ICCAN). ICCAN will be 

responsible for creating, compiling and 

disseminating best practice to the aviation 

industry on the management of civil aviation 

noise and will be responsible for advising 

government in this area. Southampton 

Airport support these proposals and will 

carefully consider any relevant best practice 

guidance published by ICCAN 

Awaiting 

formation and 

guidance from 

ICCAN 

Tracking of Noise  

Action Plan and  

mitigation measures 

n/a 

35



 

 26 

Section 12 - Provisions for evaluating implementation of 

the Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan 
 

In order to evaluate the effectiveness and delivery of the Noise Action Plan, Southampton Airport have 

established performance indicators, timescales and targets which are outlined within Section 11. 

Southampton Airport are committed to monitoring and reporting on our progress through various avenues: 

 

 Regularly as part of the Technical Working Group 

 As part of the noise sections on our website 

 Reported to the Airport Consultative Committee as part of a standing agenda item. 

 Annually via an externally verified progress report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36



 

 27 

Appendices 

Appendix A: Technical glossary and abbreviations 

Agglomeration The Environmental Noise (England) Regulations 2006:  An agglomeration is an area having a population in excess of 100,000 

persons and a population density equal to or greater than 500 people per square km and identified in Regulations by the 

Secretary of State.  For the first round of mapping to be reported in 2007, the population threshold is 250,000. 

ANCON 2.3  Aircraft Noise Contour Model version 2.3.  The UK civil aircraft noise contour model produced and maintained by ERCD. 

ATC Air Traffic Control.  

CAA Civil Aviation Authority. 

Directorate of Airspace 

Policy 

The Directorate of Airspace Policy (DAP), a Group within the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA), which sits alongside the groups 

responsible for Safety Regulation, Economic Regulation and Consumer Protection.  The Directorate is staffed by civilian and 

military experts with experience of commercial, business, recreational and military aviation. The Government requires the 

Directorate of Airspace Policy to secure the most efficient use of airspace consistent with the safe operation of aircraft and 

the expeditious flow of air traffic whilst taking into consideration the requirements of operations and owners of all classes 

of aircraft.  Additionally environmental implications and national security issues must be considered.  The Directorate is 

also required to provide the UK Meteorological Authority and Regulation for Aeronautical Information services. 

dB(A)  A unit of sound pressure level, adjusted in accordance with the A weighting scale, which takes into account the increased 

sensitivity of the human ear at some frequencies. 

Decibel (dB) The decibel (dB) is a logarithmic unit of measurement that expresses the magnitude of a physical quantity relative to a 

specified or implied reference level. Its logarithmic nature allows very large or very small ratios to be represented by a 

convenient number. Being a ratio, it is a dimensionless unit. Decibels are used for a wide variety of measurements including 

acoustics, and for audible sound A-weighted decibels (dBA) are commonly used. 

Defra Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs (UK Government). 

DfT Department for Transport (UK Government). 

ECAC European Civil Aviation Conference. 

ERCD Environmental Research and Consultancy Department of the Civil Aviation Authority. 

FlightPath 2050 https://ec.europa.eu/transport/sites/transport/files/modes/air/doc/flightpath2050.pdf 

FLOPC Flight Operations Committee: Southampton Airport forum including Airline Partners, Aircraft operators and ATC 

GNSS Global Navigation Satellite System  - a satellite base global positioning system for aircraft  

37

https://ec.europa.eu/transport/sites/transport/files/modes/air/doc/flightpath2050.pdf


 

 28 

ICAO International Civil Aviation Organization. 

LAeq,16h The A-weighted average sound level over the 16 hour period of 07:00 – 23:00. 

Lday The A-weighted average sound level over the 12 hour day period of 07:00 – 19:00. 

Lden The day, evening, night level, Lden is a logarithmic composite of the Lday, Levening, and Lnight levels.  

LAeq Equivalent sound level of aircraft noise in dBA, often called equivalent continuous sound level.  

Levening The A-weighted average sound level over the 4 hour evening period of 19:00 – 23:00 hours.  An artificial 5 dB(A) weighting 

is added. 

Lnight The A-weighted average sound level over the 8 hour night period of 23:00 – 07:00 hours.  An artificial 10 dB(A) weighting 

is added. 

LOP Local Operating Procedure 

Modal Split If aircraft land from the north of the airport or depart to the south they are described as using runway 20.  If aircraft land 

from the south or depart to the north, they are described as using runway 02. These runway numbers are clearly marked 

at both ends of the runway.  This is referred to as the runway modal split. 

NATS Formerly known as National Air Traffic Services.  NATS is licensed to provide en-route air traffic control for the UK and the 

Eastern part of the North Atlantic and also provides air traffic control services at several major UK airports. 

Noise Regulation contours These are Lden contours which have been prescribed under the noise regulations and form the basis for this Noise Action 

Plan.  They include an Lday , Levening , Lnight , LAeq,16h and an Lden contour, which is a logarithmic composite of the Lday, Levening, and 

Lnight levels. 

Noise Contour  Map contour line indicating noise exposure in dB for the area that it encloses. 

Noise Sensitive Properties These are defined under the Noise Regulations and include housing, hospitals and schools (within the noise regulation 

contours). 

Routine noise contours These contours are those produced every year for Eastleigh Borough Council.  They use daily aircraft movements that take 

place in the 16 hour period (07:00-23:00) during the 92 day period 16 June to 15 September inclusive.  They are produced 

retrospectively each year for the previous year. 

Sustainable Aviation A UK aviation industry initiative aiming to set out a long term strategy for the industry to address sustainability issues. 

NoiseDesk Aircraft track keeping monitoring system used by Southampton Airport 

38



 

 29 

Appendix B: Financial information: current Southampton Airport cost of noise management 

 

Type Description  

Estimated 

Cost 

Staff 
Noise and Flight Evaluation Unit, Environment, communications and Airside 

Operations team. Director's time.   
£80,000 

Computer/Software Noise Track Keeping Software, website development and computer equipment £25,000 

Equipment Deployment of noise monitors £18,000 

Flight Evaluation 

Unit Line  
Dedicated Telephone line £150 

Research, Events and 

Subscriptions.  

Research on noise and operational performance matters. Stakeholder conferences, 

venue costs & expenses.  Technical Working Group, Consultative Committee, other 

noise meetings. Subscriptions. 

£2,500 

Consultancy  Preparation of annual noise contours £6,000 

Publications  Airport noise literature and Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan. £7,000 

39



 

 30 

Appendix C: Southampton ‘agglomeration’ as defined by DEFRA 

 

Road, rail and air action plans have to give consideration to areas within the agglomeration and will ultimately form part of an Agglomeration Action Plan 

produced by the Secretary of State for Transport.  

 

 
Figure 3: Southampton Agglomeration 

 

40



 

 31 

Appendix D: Southampton agglomeration with noise contours overlapped 

 

All diagrams within this appendix have been reproduced with the permission of DEFRA. 

 
Figure 4: Lden noise contours overlapped on Southampton Agglomeration 

41



 

 32 

 

 
Figure 5: Lday noise contours overlapped on the Southampton Agglomeration 

42



 

 33 

 
Figure 6: Levening noise contours overlapped on the Southampton Agglomeration 

43



 

 34 

 
Figure 7: LAeq 16 noise contours overlapped on Southampton Agglomeration 

44



 

 35 

 
Figure 8: Lnight noise contours overlapped on the Southampton Agglomeration 

 

45



 

 36 

Appendix E: “Routine noise contours” - 2016dB LAeq,16h  

 

46



 

 37 

Appendix F: “Noise Regulation Contours” - 2016 dB Lden  

 

47



 

 38 

 Appendix G:  Useful contacts 

 

Southampton Airport Noise & Flight Evaluation Unit 

Telephone: 023 8062 7070 

Email: sounoisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com  

Post: Noise & Flight Evaluation Unit, Southampton Airport, Southampton, SO18 2NL 

Website: https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/aircraft-noise/  

 

DEFRA 

Website: www.defra.gov.uk 

 

NATS (ATC) 

Website: www.nats.co.uk 

 

CAA 

Website: www.caa.co.uk 

 

Sustainable Aviation 

Website: www.sustainableaviation.co.uk 

 

Eastleigh Borough Council 

Telephone: 023 8068 8000 

Post: Eastleigh Borough Council, Leigh Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

Website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk 

 

Southampton City Council 

Telephone: 023 8022 3855 

Post: Southampton City Council, Civic Offices, Southampton, SO14 7LY 

Website: www.southampton.gov.uk 

 

Winchester City Council 

Telephone: 01962 840 222 

Post: Winchester City Council, City Offices, Colebrook Street, Winchester, SO23 9LJ 

Website: www.winchester.gov.uk 

 

 

  

48

mailto:sounoisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/aircraft-noise/
http://www.defra.gov.uk/
http://www.nats.co.uk/
http://www.caa.co.uk/
http://www.sustainableaviation.co.uk/
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


 

 39 

Appendix H: Southampton Airport Noise Preferred Routes 

Northern Operations 

Aircraft Departing to the North (Runway 02) 
Aircraft departing in a northerly direction are required to continue along the runway heading until reaching 
two and a half miles from the end of the runway. This avoids overflying the village of Bishopstoke to the north 
east, and densely populated areas of Eastleigh and Chandler’s Ford to the North West. After this point aircraft 
will then route towards their next navigational waypoint. 
 

Aircraft Arriving from the North (Runway 20) 

Non-Visual Approach (using specialist navigation equipment - ILS) 
Aircraft will join the standard approach path from no less than 8 nautical miles and at a constant 3° angle of 
approach. 
 

Visual Approach 
Aircraft making a visual approach will be aligned with the centre line of the runway from not less than 2 
nautical miles when arriving from a southerly point of origin, and at 5 nautical miles when from northerly, 
easterly or westerly directions. 
 
 

Southern Operations  

Aircraft Departing to the South (Runway 20) 
Aircraft taking off to the south will climb straight ahead to 500ft above mean sea level, and then turn right to 
follow a 217° heading. This heading will direct aircraft towards the path of the River Itchen and the track will 
be maintained until reaching Southampton Water or 2000ft above mean sea level, whichever is reached first. 
The exact point, at which aircraft reach 500ft and subsequently turn, will vary depending on many factors, 
such as engine type, aircraft weight and weather conditions. 

 

Aircraft Arriving from the South (Runway 02) 

Visual Approach 
The point at which aircraft are required to be on alignment with the runway’s centre line, when making a visual 
approach is four miles. Aircraft join the approach path over the less densely populated Southampton Water 
area to manoeuvre onto the runway centre line for arrival. The aircraft are then required to follow a 3º angle 
of approach for operational reasons. 
 
 

Exclusions from Noise Preferred Routes 
 
The UK Civil Aviation Authority has a strict consultation process in place to ensure that all stakeholders are 
made aware of, and given an opportunity to feedback on any proposed permanent flight path changes. It is 
important to note that Southampton Airport will not permanently change any flight paths without following 
this process of consultation. However, there are conditions when noise preferred routes will not be flown on 
a temporary basis. These include: 
 

49



 

 40 

Type of aircraft 
These routes only apply to commercial aircraft above 5700kgs and to all jet aircraft. Smaller aircraft types, 
such as the Trislander aircraft, smaller propeller aircraft and helicopters will not follow these routes as this 
would result in significantly increased journey times and increased fuel usage. 

 

Operational activity 
Occasionally aircraft will be directed by NATS not to fly the Noise Preferred Route due to weather conditions, 
other air traffic in the area, or for aircraft performance reasons. 
In addition, communities around the airport are likely to see and hear aircraft even if they do not fly directly 
overhead. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

50



 

 41 

Appendix G: Consultation Responses  

 

On the 10th of April 2018 the draft Noise Action Plan was submitted to the Airport Consultative Committee for 

consultation and it was also published on the airport’s website. On the 22nd May the consultation period closed 

and we would like to thank all those who took the time to provide their feedback. Below is a summary of the 

comments received and the airport’s response to those comments.  

 

Comment Airport Response 

Your usual approach route for landings from the North 
passes to the West of Colden Common, following the 
less-populated gap between our village and 
Otterbourne, along the River Itchen's floodplain. Your 
noise contour maps illustrate this effectively as the 
contours extend northward until they are adjacent to 
our village to the West.  

My first point is that I do not believe that your contour 
mapping is adequately taking account of the local 
geography. Aircraft on approach fly down the valley 
created by the river, and the villages are further uphill. 
This means that the houses in the villages are 
horizontally much closer to the aircraft than the 
contours would suggest. I believe you need to expand 
your mapping activity to include the residential areas 
on either side of the approach path to allow for this.  

Similarly, either due to wind conditions or to save time, 
aircraft frequently fly directly over the village, with a 
greater noise impact when they do. You need to carry 
out your noise impact assessment over a longer period 
of time, to ensure that the sporadic days following that 
pattern are captured and their impact assessed. 

As a former Eastleigh resident, I was used to the 
background noise from the airport, to the point that it 
was often only noticeable when it stopped in the 
evening, as the last manoeuvring aircraft stopped its 
engines. However, whilst I cannot hear that ground 
noise now, I believe that the noise impact of 
approaching aircraft is greater in Colden Common than 
it was in central Eastleigh, despite the aircraft being at 
a greater height above sea level. I believe this is due to 
the geography, as I state above, where the village is 
essentially "side-on" to the approaching aircraft. 

Despite my comment above, I believe the airport is 
generally efficiently and considerately run and a 
definite benefit to the region. I would ask you to 
consider the following action points: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The contours are calculated and published by the 

environmental research and consultancy 

department (ERCD) of the Civil Aviation Authority 

(CAA).  

 

Details of how the ERCD  calculate the contours, 

including how terrain data is used as part of the 

model can be found here: 

https://www.caa.co.uk/Consumers/Environment

/Noise/Features-of-the-ANCON-noise-modelling-

process/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51

https://www.caa.co.uk/Consumers/Environment/Noise/Features-of-the-ANCON-noise-modelling-process/
https://www.caa.co.uk/Consumers/Environment/Noise/Features-of-the-ANCON-noise-modelling-process/
https://www.caa.co.uk/Consumers/Environment/Noise/Features-of-the-ANCON-noise-modelling-process/


 

 42 

- Greater discipline in maintaining "straight-line" 
approach and departure routes on both northern and 
southern approaches, to a greater distance from the 
runway, to limit the high-impact areas affected. This 
would need to include both air traffic control 
instruction and penalties for airlines choosing to "cut 
the corner" 
 
- Mandating steeper approach paths on landing, to 
increase the separation of aircraft from homes until 
closer to the runway 
  
 
 
 
 
 
- Continuing to restrict the operation of older, noisier 
aircraft, with the restrictions increasing over time, to 
encourage airlines to invest in newer, quieter aircraft 
as they become available. 

 

We proactively monitor aircraft adherence to 

noise preferred routes and there is a new action 

as part of the 2018 – 2023 NAP to create a process 

for penalising airlines should deviations occur. For 

more details please refer to section 11.  

 

 

A commonly used approach slope is 3° from the 

horizontal, currently the angle at SOU is 3° to 

runway 02 (landing from the South) and 3.1° to 

runway 20 (landing from the North). To make the 

angle of approach steeper would therefore 

require modifications of airspace which 

regrettably at present is not a viable option.  

 

We are proposing to continue with these actions, 

please refer to section 9 of the Noise Action Plan.  

Your wording around night flights has changed in the 

draft noise action plan. 

Is it you intention to open the airport at night and to 

use your quota of night flights (10 a month)? 

 

We are not intending to open at night or to 

increase the use of the night flights quota.  

 

  

Colden Common Parish Council are wishing to 
complaint that Southampton Airport have not 
contacted us directly with this consultation.  We have 
heard about it completely by chance. 
We believe we should have  
Been given at least 6 weeks so that we can inform our 
parishioners and get their reaction 
The Airport should have offered to come and talk to the 
communities most affected and the PC's 
Notified us of any exhibitions etc 
We wish our complaint to be complaint to 
acknowledged and answered and ask for at least 4 
extra weeks consultation 
 

It is the duty of Southampton Airport to notify 
organisations and associations directly affected by 
aircraft noise that a consultation is taking place. No 
such notification was received by Twyford Parish 
Council and I believe Colden Common Parish Council 
as well. By chance the aircraft noise consultation was 
brought to the attention of the Council today with a 
time limit of only one week to make a submission. 

The Noise Action Plan was distributed to all 

members of the Airport’s Consultative Committee 

(ACC). The ACC is made up of MPs, town 

councillors, parish councillors and local 

community groups who together represent the 

local community. For a full list of consultative 

committee members and for details of the 

constitution, please see Eastleigh Borough 

Councils website: 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommittee

Details.aspx?ID=267  

Alongside publishing the NAP to our consultative 

committee, the airport also published the draft on 

the website and invited local residents who had 

recently submitted noise complaints to review 

and respond.  

Following the emails from Colden Common Parish 

Council and Twyford Parish Council, the 

52

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=267
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=267


 

 43 

This is impossible and the Council requests an 
extension of one month in order to discuss the 
matter. 
 

consultation period was extended by to the 22nd 

of May giving a total of 6 weeks consultation.  

 

Thank you for consulting the Environment Service at 
Eastleigh Borough Council on your draft Noise Action 
Plan for 2018-2023, it is good to see that the Airport 
supports the Environmental Noise Directive, END, and 
is working to manage the impacts of noise on the local 
community. 
 
Our comment: 
 

1. Section 4 legislation 
a. the section on UK government 

legislation does not mention the UK 
statutory instruments pertaining to 
the END 

b. not clear why the sub sections: 
Changes to aviation noise 
compensation policy, The 
independent commission on civil 
aviation noise, and New metrics and 
appraisal guidance for assessing noise 
impacts are under the heading of 
‘Local authorities’. 

c. We are pleased that the airport 
supports the adoption of the LOAEL 
levels for daytime and night time 
operations noise assessment. 

 
2. Section 6 Measuring aircraft Noise 

a. The routine noise contours, based on 
a the summer aircraft movements, 
and reported as LAeq16hr, 0700-2300,  this 
measure is at variance with the 
permitted operational times of the 
airport and thus will be likely to 
underestimate the noise impact of 
operations over the summer. 

 
 
 
 
 

3. Section 8 Results of noise mapping 
a. Tables 1,2,3 and 5; Table 1 uses a 

different banding of noise levels when 
compared to tables 2,3 and 5. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We have added these details to Section 4.  

 

 

We have moved these sections into the UK 

Government legislation section.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is a standard data measurement that is 

calculated and published by the environmental 

research and consultancy department (ERCD) of 

the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) for all airports.  

We have asked the CAA to clarify the reasoning 

behind the contour bands and we will update the 

NAP once we receive a response.  

 

 

 

 

These tables were supplied to us by DEFRA as part 

of the Airport Noise Action Planning Data Pack 

2017.  Table 1 is a specific indicator required by 

the Environmental Noise Directive and is reported 

in the 5dB bands defined by the Directive. Tables 

53



 

 44 

b. There is no discussion or context 
given to describe of how the number 
of dwellings and people affected by 
noise as shown by the tables has 
changed from the previous plan. For 
example looking at the => 55 band for 
Lden, the 2013-18 plan shows 2300 
dwellings / 5700 people, as opposed 
to this draft, which shows 2350 
dwellings / 5600 people. We would 
have expected some discussion 
around changes in usage or aircraft 
type at the airport since the last plan 
to illuminate this part of the plan. 

c. Similarly. Table 4 shows the number 
of dwellings / people within the LAeq, 

day contours, this shows <50 dwellings 
/ 100 people in the 63 dB category, 
but no discussion of how this relates 
to the compensation policy is made. 

4. Section 10 Noise Management 
a. Reference is made to Noise Insulation 

and Land-use Planning, this does not 
reference Table 4. 

5.  Section 11 - Noise Actions / Action Plan 
a. It would be helpful to number the 

actions listed to facilitate 
communication on these matters. 

b. Reduction of noise at source – it 
would have been helpful to explain 
more about how the 3rd item, 
FlightPath 2050 will be incorporated 
into the operation of the airport , how 
the current situation compares to 
2000 noise levels, and how it will lead 
to further reductions in noise levels. 

c. ‘Working with local communities’ - 
the 7th action listed refers to the 
deployment of noise monitoring 
equipment at the direction of the 
TWG. We would recommend that it is 
deployed to look at the dwellings 
identified in Table 4 to determine 
whether any or all that fall within the 
63dBLAeq, day contour are correctly 
identified. A view will also need to be 
taken as part of the development of 
the noise insulation policy as to how 
the assessment will take account of 
the delay between the production of 
contours, e.g. the current contour is 

2 to 5 use routine UK aviation banding. We have 

added a note to table 1 explaining this.  

 

We have reviewed this as part of the Noise Action 

planning process and decided not to include a 

comparison due to the relatively small changes in 

the tables (both positively and negatively).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further information will be provided in our Noise 

Insulation Policy.  

 

 

 

 

We have added a note within Section 10 to refer 

to Section 6: table 4. 

 

 

We have added numbers to the actions.  

 

As part of the AGS group we form part of a 

working group which looks to improve sustainable 

aviation across airports globally. We will continue 

to work as part of this and we will update our 

Airport Consultative Committee with any new and 

substantial objectives. 

 

Thank you for your recommendation. We will 

review this as part of the process of finalising the 

Noise Insulation Policy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

54



 

 45 

based on 2016 aircraft data and 2015 
population data. 

d. ‘Influencing planning policy…’ – we 
support the third item, to develop a 
Noise Insulation Policy. We would 
question why this has been placed in 
the sub category of influencing 
planning policy, it would be better 
perhaps located within the preceding 
sub section, or the following section 
‘Organising ourselves to manage noise 
efficiently ..’. See also comments in 4c 
and 5c above 

 

 

 

 

The headings reflect the ICAO balanced approach 

and follow our AGS group strategy in terms of 

Noise Action Plan actions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I live in Colden Common near the Rising Sun pub. There 
is often unnecessary noise caused by aircraft flying 
overhead of this vicinity, on quite a regular basis. 
 
I walk around Colden Common village often, for the 
exercise -- there are often aircraft flying across the 
whole of Colden Common village, causing unnecessary 
noise. 
 
It seems to me that the pilots of all these aircraft are 
turning on their approach, or departure, from the 
airport -- and  'taking a short cut' across this relatively 
high density population area. 
 
This is crazy, given there are much better take-off and 
landing pathways / flight-paths (in this area to the 
north of the airport). 
 
It would be much better, with less noise impact on 
households, if instead of flying / turning directly 
above Colden Common, they came-in / took off on a 
direct line, directly aligned with the airport runway for 
15 miles, at a higher altitude over the built up areas 
'directly' to the north. By using altitude on this direct 
path, it would significantly minimise any noise on that 
pathway. 
 
 
 
Alternatively, if aircraft must turn, on approach / take-
off -- it would be better if the approached / departed 
via the west -- over the open countryside towards 
Silkstead. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We proactively monitor aircraft adherence to 

noise preferred routes and there is a new action 

as part of the 2018 – 2023 NAP to create a process 

for penalising airlines should deviations occur. For 

more details please refer to section 11 of the NAP. 

 

 

Noise preferred routes for departing aircraft and 

for aircraft arriving ‘visually’ (in good visibility) 

were introduced following a wide scale 

consultation with local stakeholders, residents 

and councils. These routeings aim to divert 

aircraft away from the most densely populated 

areas where it is possible to do so. The airport 

ensures, as far as is reasonably practical, that 

aircraft using the airport adhere to the preferred 

routes. 

 

Aircraft safety requires that wherever possible, 

aircraft have as direct approach as possible to the 

runway. As part of the Noise Action Plan we have 

worked to put actions in place to mitigate the 

55



 

 46 

 
If on rare occasions they must travel over the eastern 
side of the river Itchen valley -- it would be much more 
preferable if aircraft crossed the B3335 in the area with 
next to zero dwellings -- immediately to the north, or 
immediately to the south, of Twyford village ---  instead 
of flying across Colden Common village. 
 
Please will you email reply and confirm that you will in 
future, for evermore -- ban all aircraft from flying over 
Colden Common Village 

effects of aircraft noise on the communities living 

under these flight paths. As part of this we will be 

monitoring adherence to noise preferred routes. 

 

 

I would like to bring to your attention the increase in 

aircraft noise levels in Colden Common. I have lived 

here for over 20 years and noticed the increase in 

aircraft noise levels particularly where the incoming 

aircraft "cut the corner" across Colden Common as 

they approach Southampton airport. Could I ask you to 

consider aircraft avoiding the Colden Common area to 

reduce the increased levels of aircraft noise affecting 

our lives. 

We proactively monitor noise preferred routes for 

arriving and departing aircraft and as part of this 

Noise Action Plan we are introducing an action to 

penalise airlines if they deviate from these routes 

without due cause. Future concerns around this 

issue should be sent to our flight evaluation unit: 

noisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com  

As a resident of Fisher's Pond for some 30 years this 
item is of interest.  We live on Portsmouth Road, a few 
house from the traffic lights in main road.  Map 
reference 490208 
 
When we came here it seemed as though planes 
coming from the south and landing from the north 
seemed to turn left over our house. 
 
A few years ago, maybe five, there was a new 
agreement and the planes from the south had to go up 
towards Twyford then turn south.  This was quite a 
relief as noise was reduced. 
 
Recently there has been an increase in noise.  The 
scheduled airliners are following the rules.  But there 
are an increasing number of small aircraft 'cutting the 
corner'.  Particularly the small passenger jets which an 
executive might hire.  Also light aircraft which might be 
privately owned. 
 
I believe there are private hire jets based at 

Eastleigh.  The light aircraft may be amateur visitors. 

Noise preferred routes for departing aircraft and 

for aircraft arriving ‘visually’ (in good visibility) 

were introduced following a wide scale 

consultation with local stakeholders, residents 

and councils. You can find details of these routes 

in appendix H. The noise preferred routes only 

apply commercial aircraft above 5700kgs and to 

all jet aircraft. Smaller aircraft types, such as 

smaller propeller aircraft and helicopters will not 

follow these routes as this would result in 

significantly increased journey times and 

increased fuel usage. 

 

We work closely with our business partners who 

operate aircraft under the minimum weight 

threshold to highlight the importance of the NPRs 

and also with Air Traffic Control to ensure that 

routings given to airlines comply with noise 

guidelines.  

 

There is a lot of background information and a useful 
table of actions, some completed, some in-course and 
others maybe yet to be started. 
  
Of interest to me particularly is the noise contour maps 
and action tasks and the completed task regarding new 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56

mailto:noisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com


 

 47 

tracking systems for deviating aircraft, of which there 
have been a few recently. 
  
The level of noise (particularly due to the purple FlyBe 
craft and the vast increase in flights) has increased 
significantly.  It seemed to me that the aircraft were 
following a 'dog-legged' approach from the North and 
it might be better if they followed a track closer to the 
railway line and the M3 motorway.  However looking 
at the maps it is clear this is a miss-understanding on 
my part.  However I feel I am correct when I say that 
until a number of years back, they did indeed stay 
further away from Colden Common than they do now. 
  
What I think has changed is that planes seem to rarely 
approach from Winchester, over the Twyford Cutting 
(M3) and if they do they are higher up and further away 
than the majority.  Instead the majority seem to come 
from Chilcomb, down to Twyford and keeping as far 
from the railway line as they can. 
  
Now, I am aware that the area above Chilcomb, Easton 
and Ovington is being used to 'stack' flights where 
maybe a few years ago this was not the case?  I travel 
this area frequently and it is clear to see.  As a result 
when leaving the stack, they follow the above 
mentioned track down to Twyford and on.  This is what 
I believe is different now.  When this happens, they 
also seem to come in with a minimal time spacing 
between them (3 planes within 10 minutes for 
example)! 
  
It is interesting that the maps (eg: Figure 5) show the 
urban areas in pink/red.  More interesting is that 
Colden Common and Twyford is not similarly 
highlighted.  Reading between the lines I have 
concluded that the noise measurements taken by a 
contractor does not include Colden Common and 
Twyford. 
  
I would therefore like to see the plan moving forward 
to include extended measurements in this area and 
maybe this should also include further south as well? 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Noise preferred routes for departing aircraft and 

for aircraft arriving ‘visually’ (in good visibility) 

were introduced in 2007 following a wide scale 

consultation with local stakeholders, residents 

and councils. These routeings aim to divert 

aircraft away from the most densely populated 

areas where it is possible to do so. The airport 

ensures, as far as is reasonably practical, that 

aircraft using the airport adhere to the preferred 

routes. 

 

Due to airspace constraints, aircraft arriving onto 

runway 20 are required to fly a circuit in order to 

lose altitude prior to their final approach into the 

airport.  

 

 

As defined in Defra’s Noise Action Plan: 

Agglomerations Environmental Noise (England) 

Regulations 2006, as amended January 2014   an 

agglomeration is: “An area having a population in 

excess of 100,000 persons and a population 

density equal to or greater than 500 people per 

km2 and which is considered to be urbanised”. 

Colden Common and Twyford are not identified 

by Defra as part of the agglomeration.  

The Figures 3 to 8 show how the noise contours 

overlay on the agglomeration however the 

agglomeration does not impact the calculation of 

the noise contours.  

This information is calculated and provided by 

Defra.  

 

 

 

 

57



 

 48 

Whilst I did try to follow the discussion regarding 
Chapter 3 aircraft, it was a bit heavy going and the 
information was not easily available.  Disappointingly I 
could not find that these 'Purple FlyBe craft' fitted 
under this category! 
  
My wish would be to discourage these 'noisier' craft in 
favour of the original craft and jets. 
  
Finally, I was disappointed to find that the Colden 
Common Parish Council was not aware of this 
consultation. 
  
As one of your neighbours, I would request that you 
undertake to involve both Colden Common and 
Twyford Parish Councils in future consultations etc. 
  
  
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this feedback. 

Within section 9 of the NAP we have outlined our 

continuation of a ban on nosier aircraft as well as 

working with the industry to encourage 

technologically advanced quieter aircraft.  

 

The Noise Action Plan was distributed to all 

members of the Airport’s Consultative Committee 

(ACC). The ACC is made up of MPs, town 

councillors, parish councillors and local 

community groups who together represent the 

local community. For a full list of consultative 

committee members and for details of the 

constitution, please see Eastleigh Borough 

Councils website: 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommittee

Details.aspx?ID=267  

 

I appreciate the efforts made by the airport authority 
at Southampton to keep the noise levels at acceptable 
levels for those residents under and near the flight 
paths of aircraft using the airport. The fact that few 
flights are permitted during the night (23.00 - 6.00 
Monday to Saturday and to 7.30 Sundays) makes life 
easier for those of us near the flight paths. However, 
some aircraft do fly quite low over the Colden Common 
area rather than keep  to the the river valley route into 
the airport and monitoring of complaints of this and 
other deviations will be good. 
Although there has been an increase in the number of 
aircraft using the Southampton, I have not found that 
much increase in the noise heard. Level about the same 
but more frequent. 

We proactively monitor noise preferred routes 

for arriving and departing aircraft and any future 

concerns around aircraft should be sent to our 

flight evaluation unit: 

noisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com 

I live in Colden Common, and generally do not 
consider that aircraft noise is excessive or 
objectionable. 
 
However, there seems to be an increasing number of 
planes that appear to deviate from the usual flight 
path when coming in to land. This results in them 
flying lower or closer (or both).  
 
What, if anything, is done to follow up and apply 
sanctions to the aircraft?  It would see the pain of being 
deafened in the garden if one knew that both airline 
and captain were to receive hefty fines. 

Please refer to section11 of the Noise Action Plan 

where we have outlined our actions to proactively 

monitor aircraft tracks and deviations from the 

Noise Preferred Routes.  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

58

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=267
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=267
mailto:noisecomplaints@southamptonairport.com


 

 49 

We live in Highbridge, directly under the flight path of 
aircraft landing at Southampton from the NNE.  The 
main problem we have with noise arises when there 
are frequent flights landing during sunny days in the 
summer since the noise as each aircraft passes 
overhead precludes conversation in the garden.  It 
only really becomes irritating when several 'plane go 
over within a short time. 
 
 From looking at your noise contours it occurs to me 
that the situation would be ameliorated if the 
approach for alternate flights were shifted by 100m to 
the west or east as this would give about a 3dB 
reduction in the noise at Wardle Road and would 
represent a change of 1.5 degrees to the approach 
angle at this point.  I realise that this may not be 
feasible but I believe it is worth considering as it 
would make a significant difference to the perception 
of the noise. 
 
A minor point - in the draft plan diagrams 5, 6 and 7 
have spurious "54" dB markers. 

Regrettably small changes to the approach tracks 

of aircraft (by as little as 100m) are very difficult 

to achieve and guarantee. In addition to this, 

aircraft safety requires that wherever possible, 

aircraft have as direct approach as possible to the 

runway. As part of the Noise Action Plan we have 

worked to put actions in place to mitigate the 

effects of aircraft noise on the communities living 

under these flight paths and there is more 

information in section 11 of this NAP.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you for making us aware of this, we have 

asked DEFRA who provided the diagrams, to 

review the information provided and to update. 

Once we have received these we will update the 

Noise Action Plan.  

I live in Winchester and expect noise to a certain 
degree, but aircraft overhead going into Southampton 
Airport is over and above the expected noise level. 
Sitting in the garden, relaxing and then overhead noise, 
not once not twice but regular intervals, very annoying 
and it goes on into the late evening. 
Would like an explanation why it is so regular the 
airtraffic overhead in a built up residential area, there 
are green areas nearby. Any further development to 
the airport as to size of aircraft would be a big problem 
to me and others in this area. 
 

All aircraft that arrive and depart from 

Southampton Airport follow Noise Preferred 

Routes and these were introduced following a 

wide scale consultation with local stakeholders, 

residents and councils. These routeings aim to 

divert aircraft away from the most densely 

populated areas where it is possible to do so.  

 

As part of the Noise Action Plan we have worked 

to put actions in place to mitigate the effects of 

aircraft noise on the communities living under 

these flight paths and further details of these can 

be found in section 11. As part of this we will be 

monitoring adherence to noise preferred routes. 

 
I would like to participate in this consultation as I 
believe noise over Twyford, where I live, has increased 
significantly over the last two years with an increased 
number of noisier jet engine aircraft compared to the 
more usual an d quieter turbo propeller aircraft I am 
used to seeing. 
 
In addition, the number of aircraft especially early 
mornings and early evenings appears to have 
increased.  

 

All aircraft that arrive and depart from 

Southampton Airport follow Noise Preferred 

Routes and these were introduced following a 

wide scale consultation with local stakeholders, 

residents and councils. These routeings aim to 

divert aircraft away from the most densely 

populated areas where it is possible to do so.  

 

59



 

 50 

 
I don't find it acceptable that this is happening, 
especially given that Twyford sits in the South Downs 
National Park, where noise and light pollution should 
be reducing not increasing! 
 
I would hope it is possible to route aircraft (especially 
those landing which are lower) around Twyford so as 
to avoid entering airspace above the South Downs 
National Park. 
 

As part of the Noise Action Plan we have worked 

to put actions in place to mitigate the effects of 

aircraft noise on the communities living under 

these flight paths and further details of these can 

be found in section 11. 

Yes I would like to participate in the plan as the noise 
from some of the planes is truly awful and they fly 
straight over the village of Twyford - why can they not 
further out into the country where there is less building 
and people – probably because it is more expensive for 
fuel. 
 

Noise preferred routes for departing aircraft and 

for aircraft arriving ‘visually’ (in good visibility) 

were introduced following a wide scale 

consultation with local stakeholders, residents 

and councils. These routeings aim to divert 

aircraft away from the most densely populated 

areas where it is possible to do so. The airport 

ensures, as far as is reasonably practical, that 

aircraft using the airport adhere to the preferred 

routes. 

 

As part of the Noise Action Plan we have worked 

to put actions in place to mitigate the effects of 

aircraft noise on the communities living under 

these flight paths. As part of this we will be 

monitoring adherence to noise preferred routes. 

We welcome the consultation.  Having read the draft 
plan, there appears to be no Noise Preferred Route to 
the north in recognition of the northern villages to the 
airport. Otterbourne Parish Council would like to see 
this incorporated into the Noise Action Plan.  
 

We have added an additional appendix with 

details of the Noise Preferred Routes for both 

North and South arrivals and departures.  

 

Further to your consultation , I would make the 
following comments- 
 
I’m concerned that is seems like larger and noisier 
planes are being used (this being a change). Size was 
always a consideration and smaller quieter planes 
generally used to minimise noise disturbance. It 
seems to me that occasionally larger planes are used. I 
am kept awake by and woken up by aircraft noise. 
 
 
Secondly I understood there was an unwritten rule 
about earliest and latest take off and landing times 
but this has been denied. I am woken by planes, this is 
important to me and any slippage shortens my sleep. 

The noise that an aircraft produces varies 
depending on a number of factors. The larger the 
aircraft does not necessarily correlate with 
greater noise.   
 
In section 11 we have outlined actions to ban 
noisier aircraft and further to work with our 
partners in sustainable aviation to advance 
aircraft noise technology.  
 
 
Please refer to Section 10 which outlines our 
Section 106 agreement with Eastleigh Borough 
Council with regards to night flights.  
 
 

60



 

 51 

Sleep is vital to good health, along with fresh air, 
which brings me to... 
 
Planes dump huge quantities of particulate matter 
and it would be nice to know that this is 
acknowledged and considered, especially with the 
impending fines from Europe for failing air quality 
commitments. More locally, my wife and daughter are 
both asthmatic and are we are directly under the 
flight path, I am concerned that particulates 
exacerbate the problem and in my daughters case, 
may even have caused it. Grateful for your comments. 
 

We work closely with Eastleigh Borough Council 
to monitor air quality and we have a number of 
ongoing environmental initiatives.  
 
The Noise Action Plan only concerns noise 
however we recognise the importance of this 
issue and you can find further information on our 
website here and within section 9.6 of our 
masterplan: 
 
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-
us/our-vision/  
 
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-
us/our-local-environment/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61

https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-vision/
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-vision/
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-local-environment/
https://www.southamptonairport.com/about-us/our-local-environment/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Technical Working Group 
Friday 25th May 2018 

1400 - 1600 
Spitfire Meeting Room, Terminal, Southampton Airport 

 

Present: 
Neil Garwood (NG)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Nigel Spence (NS)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Nichola Shaw (NSh)    Southampton International Airport Limited 
Godfrey Olson (GO)    Chair of Consultative Committee 
David Airey (DA)    Eastleigh Borough Council 
Neil Scott (NSc)     Eastleigh Borough Council 
Thomas Haussoullier (TH)   Flybe 
Rosie Zambra (RZ)    Southampton City Council 
Phil Tidridge (PT)    Winchester City Council 
 
Minutes – Shona Hogg     Southampton International Airport Limited 
 

Apologies: 
Abby Toms (AT)    Winchester City Council 
Martin Lowe (ML)    Southampton City Council 
 

Description Action 
Owner 

Welcome and Apologies 
NG welcomed all to the forum, he explained that he had recently been promoted to the role of 
Managing Director at SIAL as Dave Lees would be leaving the airport to take up a new role at 
Bristol Airport. 
 
Introductions were given around the table. Apologies that had been received are tabled 
above. 

 
Review of Previous Minutes  
No actions were recorded on the previous minutes and no queries arose from them. 

 
Airport Business Update (NG) 
NG provided a verbal update on the business. SIAL experienced a great year last year. This 
year there will be some reduction on some Flybe routes this summer, BMI Regional (BMIR) 
will no longer be delivering their Munich route due to some issues with crew numbers. Some 
reductions on Eastern with some rotations being cut. Summer season is still expected to be a 
busy one with Ibiza and Majorca selling well. 
 
Noise Action Plan and Masterplan will be finalised in coming weeks. 
 
Project Update – runway drainage system has been upgraded and is new and improved. 
Roadways on approach to airport, some work has been done to upgrade the safety features 
outside of the terminal. Also replacements have been made to primary radar equipment 
which needed updating. 
 
GO asked whether or not anything airlines were leaving SIAL, NG reiterated it was just BMIR 
who had ceased operations. 
 
DA – is the service to Greece still starting up soon.  
NG – yes they have a relationship with Flybe and Flybe will be operating this for FlyLolo with 
around 120 seats on it.  
 
NG discussed the challenges with Flylolo brand launching within the region as there is not 
much awareness of the brand. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63

Agenda Item 12



 
Noise Statistics Review (NSh) 

 In the period of January to April of 2018 we received 6 noise complaints. 
 In 2017 we received a total of 3 complaints during the same period. 

 

     
 

 
Ops to South Ops to North 

 

 
Arr 02 Dep 20 Arr 20 Dep 02 Unknown 

Jan 
 

2 
   

Mar 
     

Apr 
 

1 
 

2 
 

May 
 

1 
   

Total 
      

 4 complaints relating to southerly operations 
 2 complaints relating to northerly operations 
 NoiseDesk software was used to assist with all responses.  

 
DA asked NSh to bring along to the Consultative Committee some evidence of the process 
which is undertaken to investigate and progress noise complaints which had been received. 
 
Noise Desk Update (NSh) 

 We are now proactively monitoring NPR deviations:  
o On two occasions we have already investigated the NPR deviation before 

receiving a complaint. 
 

 Next step is to formalise the process for addressing deviations with the airlines into a 
Local Operating Procedure (LOP). 

 

Laser & Drones Update (NS) 
NS updated that there had been one report of laser activity and no reports of drones since the 
last meeting. 
 
NS reported that SIAL had been approached to trial a piece of technology which will be 
placed on the airfield to detect if people are using drones within a 2-3km radius of the airfield. 
This will provide SIAL with some data to determine if there is anything which SIAL need to do. 
SIAL are in regular collaboration with Hampshire Police to support the airport in this matter. 
 

Airspace Update (NS) 
NS report to the forum that SIAL’s Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) approach in to runway 
02 finally became live on 2

nd
 April 2018. No increase in noise complaints is attributable to the 

implementation of this change.  
 

Noise Action Plan Update (NSh) 
Timeline 

 9
th
 February 2018: Consultative Committee took place where Timeline 

presented 

 10
th
 April 2018: Release 1st draft of NAP to consultative committee members for 

comment. Publish of the draft on the website for public consultation. 

 22nd May 2018 - Deadline for receiving consultation comments 

 8
th
 June 2018  Consultative Committee Meeting - Presentation of the final draft of 

the Noise Action Plan for endorsement. 

 31st August 2018: Deadline for submission of NAP to DEFRA 

 18th January 2019: Deadline for publication of NAP on website 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NSh 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2015 2016 2017

Jan 3 0 1

Feb 0 1 0

Mar 3 0 1

Apr 4 0 1

Total 10 1 3

64



NSh took the forum through the consolidated feedback which had been received since the 
consultation had closed. Her update detailed what had been feedback and what the airport 
response had been for each one. 
 
NSc queried the banding for some of the contours as they covered 0700 – 2300 but had 
flagged that SIAL had a small number of flights outside of these times and he felt this should 
be altered. NSh reported that they were set contours created by DEFRA (Department for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs). NSh agreed to go back to CAA to discuss this further 
with them. 
 

Agenda Items for Consultative Committee Meeting on 8th June 2018 
1. Noise Action Plan 
2. Masterplan 
3. Report on Passengers with Restricted Mobility  

 

Any Other Business 
RZ mentioned that SCC are responsible for infectious disease control – it was suggested that 
this would be progressed through SIAL’s Emergency Planning Group (EPG) in June. SH to 
ensure it is on the agenda. 
 
DA suggested that the above topic is also brought to ACC for an update following 
presentation at EPG. NG agreed this could be add to the agenda for the Consultative 
Committee in October. 
 
Terms of Reference to be re-circulated with these minutes so the forum can review and 
feedback any comments which they have on them ahead of them being adopted formally in 
September’s meeting. 

 
 
 
 

NSh 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SH 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday 24

th
 September 2018 

Spitfire Room, Southampton Airport 

 

65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Airport Managing Director's Report
	7 Noise Action Plan
	12 Technical Working Group feedback

